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Notice is hereby given that the 32nd  Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of  Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. 
will be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2021 at 12.00 noon at Regent Plaza Hotel and Convention Centre, 
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

By order of the Board

 
 

Karachi 
Dated :  October 04, 2021             SYED SHAHID SULTAN  

Company Secretary

           
Notes: 
 
(i) Shareholders are advised to promptly notify any change in their addresses. 

 
(ii) Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 25, 2021 to November 01,   

2021 (both days inclusive) to determine the names of members entitled to receive the Cash dividend  
and to attend the Meeting. 
 

(iii) A member eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend, and vote for him/her. Proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not 
less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting. 
 

(iv) Due to Covide-19 situation, members are encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by 
consolidating their attendance through proxies. The shareholders who wish to attend the AGM 
through video link are requested to get themselves registered by providing the following information 
via email at secretary@idreestextile.com on or before October 24, 2021. 
 

Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions on the proposed agenda items of the 
AGM on above email address. 
 
Members shall be registered after necessary verification and will be provided a video link and login 
credentials by the Company on the same email address that they emailed to the Company. The 
login facility will remain open 11.45 a.m. till the end of  the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of
 

CNIC No.
 

CDC Account No. 
 

Cell No.
 

Email.ID
 

Shareholder  Folio No.   
 
 

    

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2020. 
2. To receive, consider and adopt     Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended June 30, 2021 together with Review Report of the Chairman, Reports of Directors and  Auditors

. 
3. To approve cash dividend @ 10% (i.e.Re. 1/-  per share) to shareholders, as recommended by the 

Board of Directors. 

4. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2022 and fix their remuneration. 
The retiring auditors M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants , being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. 

5. To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the 
Chair 

,  thereon. 
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(vi) Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with 
a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-
submission all future dividend payments may be withheld. 
 

(vii) The rate of deduction of income tax from dividend payments under section 150 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 shall be as follows: 
 
1. Persons appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 15%.  
2. Persons not appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 30%.  

 
Witholding Tax exemption from the dividend income, shall only be allowed if copy of valid exemption 
certificate or stay order from a competent court of law is made available to JWAFFS Registrar 
Services (Pvt) Ltd. by the first day of Book Closure. 
 
Further according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will 
be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) 
based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint account. 
 
In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding 
Proportions of Principal shareholders and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our 
Share Registrar in writing the follows: 
 

 
The required information must reach our Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it will be 
assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s). 
  

(viii) As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every Company is required to replace its physical 
shares with book entry form within the period as notified by the SECP i.e May 31, 2017. 
 
The shareholder having physical shareholding are accordingly encourage to open their account with 
Investor Accounts Services of CDC or sub-account with any of the brokers and convert their physical 
shares  into scrip less form. This will facilitate the shareholders in many ways, including safe custody 
and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per 
existing regulation of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 

 
(ix) Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143 to 

Section 145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Regulation, 2018. 
 

(x) In pursuance to the direction given by SECP, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual 
Financial Statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by post are advise to give 
their formal consent along with their valid email address on a standard request form which is 
available at the Company website (idreestextile.com) and send the said form duly signed by the 
shareholder to the Company’s Share Registrar. 

 

Company 
Name

 
 

 Folio/CDS
Account #

 
 

Name &
CNIC No.

 
Shareholding  

Proportion  
(No.of Share)  

 
Name &

CNIC No.
 

Shareholding
Proportion  

(No.of Share)

 
 

     

Principle Shareholder  Joint Shareholder  

 
(v) Shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their account/sub-account with Central 

Depository System (CDS) are requested to bring original CNIC along with account number in CDS 
and participant’s ID number for verification. In case of appointment of proxy by such account holders 
and sub-account holders the guidelines  laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued 
by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan shall be followed.



 
(e) The Board understands its responsibility to ensure that adequate and effective internal financial 

controls are in place. The internal audit department regularly reviews the design and effectiveness of 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report of the Company along with the audited 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW  
 
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of yarn and fabric. During the 
year under review, there has not been any material change in the Company’s business activities.

 
 During

 
the

 
financial year

 
under review,

 
the Company’s turnover amounted to Rs. 4,002.5 million as 

compared to Rs
 
3,239.3

 
million in the previous year. Gross profit amounted to Rs. 533.8

 
million 

compared

 
to

 
Rs.

 
2882.8

 
million for the last year and profit after tax amounted to

 
Rs. 159.8

 
million against 

loss of Rs. (10.6)

 

million

 

in the comparable period.

 

The Company’s revenue has increased by 25.6

 percent and the gross profit has increased by Rs. 250.9

 

million. 

 

 In the wake of Covid-19 pandemic, the State Bank of Pakistan reduced the discount rate drastically from 
13.25 percent to 7 percent in FY20 and maintained it till 20th

 

Sep 2021, which did benefit the Company. The 

finance cost reduced by Rs. 147.4

 

million in FY21, which, along with increased turnover and improved 

gross margin, resulted in a commendable result for the year. Economy of Pakistan rebounded strongly in 

FY21 and posted growth of 3.9 percent which is substantially higher than the previous year’s negative 

number of (0.47) percent. Appropriate policy measures by the government resulted in a V-Shaped 

economic recovery. As a result, the Company was also able to get good prices of yarn.

 

Increase in power 
tariff from 7.5 US cents to 9 US cents is, however, a cost burden. By the grace of Allah, Pakistan’s textile 

sector bounced back in FY21 encouragingly resulting in sales growth. Since the size of the Country’s cotton 
crop is unable to meet the local demand, we witnessed soaring prices in the market. The Company’s 

management, therefore, continued to

 

buy a mix of various varieties of imported cotton along with local 
cotton to optimize the cost of raw material.

 
 

EARNING

 

PER

 

SHARE

 

 

The earning per share for the year under review worked out

 

to Rs

 

8.05

 

as compared to loss

 

Rs. (5.17)

 

for the 
corresponding year.

 
 

DIVIDEND

 
 

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 04, 2021, considered

 

payment

 

of dividend after 
consideration of like Company’s performance, business needs

 

and expansion/BMR plans

 

and is pleased to 
recommend a final cash dividend @ 10% i.e Re. 1/-

 

per share.

  

 

 

STATEMENT

 

ON

 

CORPORATE

 

AND

 

FINANCIAL

 

REPORTING

 

FRAME

 

WORK

 

 

(a)

 

The

 

financial

 

statements,

 

prepared

 

by

 

the

 

management

 

of

 

the

 

Company,

 

present

 

fairly

 

its

 

state

 

of

 

affairs

 

the result

 

of

 

its

 

operations, cash

 

flows

 

and

 

changes

 

in

 

equity.

 

 

(b)

 

Proper

 

books

 

of

 

account

 

of

 

the

 

Company

 

have

 

been

 

maintained.

 

 

(c)

 

Appropriate

 

accounting

 

policies

 

have

 

been

 

consistently

 

applied

 

in

 

preparation

 

of

 

the

 

financial

 

statements

 

and accounting

 

estimates

 

are

 

based

 

on

 

reasonable

 

and

 

prudent

 

judgment.

 

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in

preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately

disclosed.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

During the year, election of director were carried out.The total number of Directors are seven as per the 
following: 

a. Male:  6     
b. Female:  1 

The Composition of Board as follows: 

 Category    Names 

a) Independent Director              i.    Syed Masud Arif 
ii)  Ms Azra Yaqub Vawda     
   

b) Non-executive Directors  i.    Mr. Muhammad Idrees Allawala 
ii)   Mr.Rizwan Idrees Allawala   

      iii)  Mr. Muhammad Israil  

 

c) Executive Directors   i)     Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 
                                                    ii)    Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 
                                                    

BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

The Board of Directors has formed the Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee in line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.  

 

The members of Audit Committee is as follows: 

 

 Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawada  Chairperson  

 Syed Masud Arif  Member 

 Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala Member 

 

The members of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 

 Syed Masud Arif  Chairman 

 Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawada  Member 

 Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala Member  

 

CAUSUAL VACANCY 

 

During the year under review Mr. Muhammad Israil has been appointed as director in place of Mr. Naeem 
Idrees Allawala  

 
  
(l)  We have an audit committee the members of which are from the board of directors and the chairman 

is a non-executive director 
 

(m)  We have prepared and circulated a statement of ethics and business strategy amongst directors 
and employees. 

 

(n)  The board has adopted a mission statement and a statement of overall corporate strategy. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

BOARD EVALUATION  

 

The Company carries out annual evaluation of the Board, members of the Board and its Committees as part 
of the Code of Corporate Governance. For that purpose, Board has developed a mechanism for evaluation 
of Board’s own performance, members of the Board and its Committees. Based on the evaluation, overall 
performance of the Board, its members and Committees of the Board for the year under review is 
satisfactory. 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION : 

 

The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including independent directors 
except for meeting fee. Aggregate amount of remuneration paid to executive and non-executive directors 
have been disclosed in note 33  of the annexed financial statements. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 
Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. being a good corporate citizen contributing for the welfare of the people in our society 

and fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs. 

3,686,878/- to various organizations serving the mankind in the health and education sectors. 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  

 

 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 
Despite an overall sense of optimism, the textile sector is currently facing sky high raw material c

The Board of Directors monitors the risks faced by the Company and takes mitigating measures to address/

manage such risks. A number of risks are faced by the Company which include credit risks, liquidity risks, 

capital risks, price risks, business risks, compliance risks and currency risks (Note: 38 to the enclosed 

financial statements). Cotton Crop, USD/Rupee parity, interest rate, energy tariff, minimum wages, taxation 

measures are the areas which remain in focus of management and affect the financial results.

During the year under review, we saw the economy recover from the adverse effects of Covid-19. However, 

the management remains vigilant and proactive to manage the risk that may arise due to emergence of 

vaccine-resistant variant of the virus.

ost. The price of 
cotton has escalated significantly in FY21. The rapid erosion in the value of Pak Rupee vs  US Dollar and 

increase in ocean freight are exerting negative impact on the cost of imported raw material. However, on the 

other hand, with an improved production activity in the fabric sector and health conditions in neighboring country 
due to the pandemic there has been a rapid hike in yarn prices.  

 

The Company has planned BMR/expansion of the mill by utilizing concessional credit facilities offered by the 

Government. For sustainable growth, the management intends to invest in automation, energy optimization and  
efficiency enhancements. We are hopeful that the benefits of these initiatives with be visible in FY23 onwards. 

On the national front, the government has set a 4.8% GDP growth target for FY22 as the country recovers 
from the worst of the coronavirus pandemic. Exports are projected to grow from FY22 onwards, as external 
conditions become more conducive, but imports are also expected to increase in line with stronger domestic 
activity and higher oil prices. Major risks to the outlook include emergence of new vaccine-resistant strains 
and delay in the implementation of critical structural reforms. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

AUDITORS 
 

The retiring Auditors M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants being el igible have offered themselves for 
re-appointment for the ensuing year 2021-2022.The audit committee in its meeting held on October 1, 2021 
has recommended the  appointment of the retiring auditors.  

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The directors are thankful to the bankers, suppliers and customers of the Company for their continued 

support and appreciate the hard work by the employees of the Company. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board

 

 

 

 

Muhammad Idrees Allawala                                                   S. M. Mansoor Allawala  

Chairman              Chief Executive  

Karachi: October 04, 2021 
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

 
I am pleased to present before you a review of the Company and the role of its Board of 
Directors in achieving the Company’s objectives for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
During the year under review, the Board duly discharged its responsibilities with respect to 
the overall management of the Company, formulation of significant policies, evaluating its 
own performance and monitoring the functioning of the Board’s Committees. Evaluation of 
the Board is aimed to measure its overall performance and conduct of the Company’s affairs 
in accordance with the best practices of corporate governance. As Chairman of the Board, it 
is my responsibility to strengthen the Company’s governance by promoting a culture 
whereby views of all stakeholders are given due consideration. In the wake of Covid-19 
pandemic, the Board consistently followed a balanced strategy to steer the Company in the 
challenging business environment and performed its duties and responsibilities diligently 
while upholding high standards of corporate governance. 
 
By the grace of Allah, Pakistan’s economy rebounded strongly in FY21 and posted growth of 
3.9 percent which is substantially higher than the previous year’s negative number of (0.47) 
percent. As retail sector is opening up worldwide, post Covid-19 lockdowns, the future of 
Pakistan’s textile sector looks promising. In order to take advantage of the emerging 
opportunities the Company has planned BMR/expansion of the mill, by utilizing concessional 
credit facilities offered by the Government. The management is closely watching volatility in 
exchange rate and the direction of monetary policy decisions. Major risks to the outlook 
include emergence of new vaccine-resistant strains and delay in the implementation of 
critical structural reforms. 
 
For the year under review, based on the evaluation, the overall performance and 
effectiveness of the Board has been assessed as Satisfactory. The Board duly carried out its 
duty to ensure high standards of corporate governance since a well-defined corporate 
governance system is vital for enhancing corporate accountability. Through appropriate 
oversight and vigilance, compliance with the applicable laws and regulations was duly 
ensured. The Company’s management constantly endeavored to safeguard shareholder 
value. During the year, the board considered and approved, among other things, quarterly 
and annual capital expenditure, borrowings and appointment of 
external auditors,. The Board’s Committees, i.e., Audit Committee and Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee duly assisted the Board in performing its duties. These 
Committees held meetings and reported to the Board as per stipulations of the corporate 
governance regulations. 
 
With completion of the three year term of the Company’s Board, election of directors took 
place in the Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2020. Seven directors were duly 
elected. I would like to extend my well wishes to all the Board members. 
 
I am thankful to the employees of the Company for their valuable services and to the 
shareholders, customers, suppliers and bankers for their continued trust and support.

 

Muhammad Idrees Allawala

 

Chairman of the Board

 
 

Karachi

 

October 04, 2021
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Six 
One

 

Female:       b) 

 

JUNE

 

30,

 

2021

 

Name

 

of

 

Company:         

 

IDREES

 

TEXTILE

 

MILLS

 

LIMITED Year

 

Ended:                     

 
 
 
 

The

 

company

 

has

 

complied

 

with

 

the

 

requirements

 

of

 

the

 

Regulations

 

in

 

the

 

following

 

manner:

 

 
1.    

 

The

 

total

 

number

 

of

 

directors

 

are

 

seven

 

as

 

per

 

the

 

following:

 
 

a) 

 

Male:          

 
 

 2.    

 

The

 

composition

 

of

 

board

 

is

 

as

 

follows:

 
 
 Category

 
Name

 
Independent

 
Directors

 
Syed

   Mrs.
 

Azra
 

Yaqub Vawda
 

Executive
 

Directors
 

Mr.
 
S. M. Mansoor

 
Allawala

 
Mr.

 
Omair

 
Idrees

 
Allawala

 
Non-Executive  Directors  Mr. Muhammad Idrees Allawala 

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 
Mr. Muhammad Israil 

 
 

3.     The  directors  have  confirmed  that  none  of them is serving as a director on more than seven 
listed  companies,  including  this  company.  

 

4.     The  company  has  prepared  a  Code  of  Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been

 
taken

 
to

 
disseminate

 
it

 
throughout

 
the

 
Company

 
along

 
with

 
its
 

supporting
 

policies
 

and 
procedures.

 

 

5.    
 

The
 

Board
 

has
 

developed
 
a

 
vision/mission statement,

 
overall

 
corporate

 
strategy

 
and
 

significant 
policies

 
of

 
the

 
company.

 
A

 
complete

 
record

 
of

 
particulars of

 
significant

 
policies

 
along

 
with
 

the 
dates

 
on

 
which

 
they

 
were

 
approved

 
or

 
amended

 
has

 
been

 
maintained.

 

 

6.    

 

All

 

the

 

powers

 

of

 

the

 

Board

 

have

 

been

 

duly

 

exercised

 

and

 

decisions on

 

relevant

 

matters

 

have been

 

taken

 

by

 

Board/shareholders

 

as

 

empowered

 

by

 

the

 

relevant

 

provisions

 

of

 

the

 

Act

 

and these

 

Regulations.

 

 

7.    

 

The

 

meetings

 

of

 

the

 

board

 

were

 

presided

 

over

 

by

 

the

 

Chairman

 

and,

 

in

 

his

 

absence,

 

by

 

a 
director

 

elected

 

by

 

the

 

Board for

 

this

 

purpose.

 

The

 

Board has

 

complied

 

with

 

the

 

requirements

 

of Act

 

and

 

the

 

Regulations

 

with

 

respect to

 

frequency,

 

recording

 

and

 

circulating

 

minutes

 

of

 

meeting of

 

Board.

 

 

8.    

 

The

 

Board

 

of

 

directors

 

have

 

a

 

formal

 

policy

 

and

 

transparent

 

procedures

 

for

 

remuneration of 
directors

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

the

 

Act

 

and

 

these

 

Regulations.

 
 

9.    

 

The

 

Board

 

remained

 

fully

 

compliant

 

the

 

provision

 

with

 

regard

 

to

 

their

 

training

 

program.

 

Three
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members

 

of

 

the

 

Board

 

have

 

the

 

prescribed

 

qualifications

 

and

 

experience

 

required

 

for

 

exemption 
from

 

training

 

program

 

of

 

Directors

 

pursuant

 

to

 

Regulation 19(2)

 

of

 

the

 

CCG. 

 

Program

 

(DTP) 
certification.

 

Four 

 

members  of 

 

the 

 

Board 

 

have 

 

already 

 

completed  the 

 

Director’s  Training 
Program.

 
 

10.  

 

The

 

Board

 

has

 

approved

 

appointment of

 

CFO,

 

Company

 

Secretary

 

and

 

Head

 

of

 

Internal

 

Audit, 
including

 

their

 

remuneration

 

and  terms

 

and 

 

conditions

 

of  employment

 

and 

 

complied

 

with 
relevant

 

requirements

 

of

 

the

 

Regulations.

 
 

11.  

 

CFO

 

and

 

CEO

 

duly

 

endorsed

 

the

 

financial

 

statements

 

before

 

approval

 

of

 

the

 

board.

 
 12.   The

 

board

 

has

 

formed

 

committees

 

comprising

 

of

 

members

 

given

 

below.

 

The

 

Board

 

Audit 
Committee

 

and

 

the

 

Board

 

Human

 

Resource

 

&

 

Compensation Committee

 

are

 

chaired

 

by 
independent

 

director:
 

 a)   
 

Audit
 

Committee
 

 1. Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda        
 
(Chairperson) 

 2. 
   

Syed     Masud Arif

Syed     Masud Arif

 3. 
 

Mr.
 

Rizwan
 

Idrees
 

Allawala
 

 
 

b)    Human  Resource  and  Remuneration Committee 
 

1.     (Chairman) 
2.  Ms.  Azra  Yaqub  Vawda  

3.  Mr.  Rizwan  Idrees  Allawala  
 

 

13.    The  terms  of  reference  of  the  aforesaid  committees have been formed, documented 
and  advised  to  the  committee  for  compliance.  

14.  
 

The
 

frequency
 

of
 

meetings
 

of
 

the
 
committee

 
were

 
as

 
per

 
following:

 
 

Committee                                          
 
Frequency

 
of meetings

 
 

Audit
 

Committee                                  
    

Quarterly
 

HR
 

and
 

Remuneration
 

Committee          
 

Annually
 

 

15.    The

 

board

 

has

 

set

 

up

 

an

 

independent

 

and

 

effective

 

internal

 

audit

 

function

 

and

 

the

 

audit 
personnel are

 

suitably

 

qualified

 

and

 

experienced

 

for

 

the

 

purpose

 

and

 

are

 

conversant

 

with

 

the 
policies

 

and

 

procedures

 

of

 

the

 

Company.

 
 

16.   

 

The

 

statutory

 

auditors

 

of

 

the

 

Company

 

have

 

confirmed

 

that

 

they

 

have

 

been

 

given a

 

satisfactory 
rating

 

under

 

the

 

quality

 

control

 

review

 

program

 

of

 

the

 

Institute

 

of

 

Chartered

 

Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP)

 

and

 

registered with

 

Audit

 

Oversight

 

Board

 

of

 

Pakistan,

 

that

 

they

 

or

 

any

 

of

 

the 
partners

 

of

 

the

 

firm,

 

their

 

spouses

 

and

 

minor

 

children

 

do

 

not

 

hold

 

shares

 

of

 

the

 

company and that

 

the

 

firm

 

and

 

all

 

its

 

partners

 

are

 

in

 

compliance

 

with

 

International

 

Federation

 

of

 

Accountants (IFAC)

 

guidelines

 

on

 

code

 

of

 

ethics

 

as

 

adopted

 

by

 

the

 

ICAP

 

and

 

that

 

they

 

and

 

the

 

partners

 

of the

 

firm

 

involved

 

in

 

the

 

audit

 

are

 

not

 

a

 

close

 

relative

 

(spouse,

 

parent,

 

dependent and

 

non-

 

dependent 
children)

 

of

 

the

 

chief

 

executive

 

officer,

 

chief

 

financial

 

officer,

 

head

 

of

 

internal

 

audit, company

 

secretary

 

or

 

director

 

of

 

the

 

company.

 
 

17.   

 

The

 

statutory auditors

 

or

 

the

 

persons

 

associated with

 

them

 

have

 

not

 

been

 

appointed

 

to

 

provide
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other

 

services

 

except

 

in

 

accordance

 

with

 

the

 

Act,

 

these

 

regulations or

 

any

 

other

 

regulatory 
requirement and

 

the

 

auditors

 

have

 

confirmed

 

that

 

they

 

have

 

observed

 

IFAC

 

guidelines

 

in

 

this 
regard.

 

18.  
 

We
 

confirm
 

that
 

the
 

requirements
 

of
 
regulations

 
3,

 
6,

 
7,

 
8,
 

27,
 

32,
 

33 and
 

36 of
 

the
 

Regulations have
 been

 
complied

 
with,

 
except

 
for

 
the

 
Independent directors

 
in
 

which
 

fraction
 

is
 

not
 

rounded up
 

as
 one

 
because

 
the

 
fraction

 
0.31

 
is

 
less

 
than

 
0.5.

 

19.  
 

Explanation
 

for
 

non-compliance
 

with
 
requirements,

 
other

 
than

 
regulations

 
3,

 
6,

 
7.

 
8,

 
27

 
32,

 
33, and

 36
 

are
 

below;
 

In  addition  to  the  mandatory  and  non-mandatory clauses/regulations stipulated in Regulations, 
there  are  certain  regulations/clauses  in  the  Regulations in which word ‘may’ or ’encouraged’ have 
been  used.  We  understand  that  these  clauses remain recommendatory in nature and therefore, 
neither  fall  under  mandatory  regulation  / clauses nor fall into ‘comply or explain’ approach. 
However,  the  Company  has complied  with  certain recommendatory regulations / clauses and 

the  Company may  consider  compliance  with  remainder of these in future. 

MUHAMMAD IDREES ALLAWALA

  
 

CHAIRMAN
  

For and on behalf of the Board
 

 
 

  
    

S M MANSOOR ALLAWALA

                

    
Chief Executive

      

    Dated: September 26, 2021 



Date: October 06, 2021
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October 06, 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at June 30, 2021

20

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 2,046,046,950

  
1,662,696,972

  

Long-term deposits 2,887,987
         

2,766,242
         

2,048,934,937
  

1,665,463,214
  

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 5        43,809,657        47,580,982 

Stock-in-trade 6   1,090,119,992   1,538,057,914 
Trade debts 7      701,721,202      782,098,181 
Loans and advances 8        83,520,710        67,718,460 
Prepayments          1,871,858          2,286,708 
Other receivables 9      154,695,934        66,431,692 
Other financial assets 10        97,094,620        73,746,320 
Cash and bank balances 11          8,370,748        18,400,305 

  2,181,204,721                                                                                           2,596,320,562 

Total Assets 4,230,139,658
  

4,261,783,776
  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorised capital

22,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 220,000,000     220,000,000     

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 12 198,528,000     198,528,000     

Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax 13 910,719,758     633,848,096     
Equity portion of loan from related parties 25,813,862       33,586,069       

Revenue reserves 951,551,923     731,526,624     
Total Equity 2,086,613,543  1,597,488,789  

Non-current Liabilities

Long-term finance 14 169,100,200     143,305,830     
Lease liability 15 10,140,260       

15,816,710       
Deferred taxation - net 16 252,700,211

     
183,503,681
     

Retirement benefit obligation 17 54,932,453
       

48,768,743
       

486,873,124
     

391,394,964
     

Current Liabilities
  

Trade and other payables 18 236,390,906
     

397,347,898
     Accrued mark-up 19 21,575,812

       
68,008,376

       Short-term borrowings 20 1,215,020,482
  

1,638,057,210
  Current portion of long-term finance 14 105,354,182

     
99,356,884

       Current portion of lease liability 15 19,268,069
       

24,536,352
       Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885

         
2,424,885

         Provision for taxation 56,618,655
       

43,168,418
       1,656,652,991

  
2,272,900,023

  Total Liabilities 2,143,526,115

  
2,664,294,987

  
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,230,139,658

  

4,261,783,776

  
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 22 4,002,482,731

    

3,239,256,236

    

Cost of sales 23 (3,468,653,953)

  

(2,956,416,446)

  

Gross profit 533,828,778

       

282,839,790

       

Distribution cost 24 (35,219,989)

       

(26,603,588)

       

Administrative expenses 25 (77,063,633)

       
(83,287,666)

       

(112,283,622)
     

(109,891,254)
     

421,545,156
       

172,948,536
       

Finance cost 26 (171,436,880)
     

(240,606,638)
     

Other operating expenses 27 (52,638,715)
       

(21,585,078)
       

197,469,561
       

(89,243,180)
       

Other income 28 25,389,171
         

10,421,660
         

Profit / (loss) before taxation 222,858,732
       

(78,821,520)
       

Taxation 29 (63,057,635)
       

(23,759,982)
       

Profit / (loss) for the year 159,801,097
       

(102,581,502)
     

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 
to profit or loss -

                     
-

                     

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the year 13 384,049,417       -                     

Impact of deferred tax thereon 13 (54,171,243)       -                     

329,878,174       -                     

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
due to change in tax rate 13 (7,130,328)         43,859,875         

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation 17.5 6,582,947           2,182,150           

Related tax (1,909,055)         (632,824)            

4,673,892           1,549,326           

327,421,738       45,409,201         

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 487,222,835       (57,172,301)       

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted
30 8.05                    (5.17)                  

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

21

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended June 30, 2021

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2021 2020
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Profit / (loss) before taxation 222,858,732

      

(78,821,520)

       

Adjustments for :
Depreciation 91,871,591

        

89,346,347

        

Provision for retirement benefit obligation 17,985,959

        

17,531,250

        

Finance cost 171,436,880

      

240,606,638

      

Realised / unrealized loss on investments -

                     

170,748

             

Profit on deposits (3,448,187)

         

(5,291,174)

         

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6,555,071)

         

(5,130,486)

         

Unwinding of discount on other receivables (14,415,117)

       

-

                     

Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 20,816,370

        

-

                     

-

                     

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 500,551,157

      

258,411,803

      

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 3,771,325

          
(6,546,671)

         

Stock-in-trade 447,937,922
      

(355,175,192)
     

Trade debts 80,376,979
        

47,219,562
        

Loans and advances (2,764,239)
         

(7,339,179)
         

Prepayments 414,850
             

(2,938,151)
         

Other receivables (94,652,134)
       

23,177,111
        

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (157,106,792)
     

207,509,669
      

277,977,911
      

(94,092,851)
       

Cash generated from operations 778,529,067
      

164,318,952
      

Finance cost paid (202,333,565)
     

(205,458,010)
     

Retirement benefit obligation paid (9,089,500)
         

(4,558,870)
         

Income tax paid (56,659,505)
       

(30,524,618)
       

Long-term deposits - net (121,745)
            

1,676,571
          

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 510,324,753
      

(74,545,975)
       

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (88,660,081)
       

(5,623,545)
         

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 22,648,000
        

10,891,000
        

Purchase of term deposit receipt - net (23,348,300)
       

(12,468,560)
       

Profit on deposits received 3,434,826
          

5,993,312
          

Proceeds from disposal of investment -
                     

3,202,527
          

Proceeds from disposal of sales tax refund bond -
                     

14,700,000
        

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (85,925,555)       16,694,734        

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term finance repaid to financial institutions (46,041,049)       (25,232,022)       

Long-term finance obtained from financial institutions 99,287,300        52,500,000        

Long-term finance repaid to related parties (35,226,790)       (5,567,612)         

Long-term finance obtained from related parties 6,000,000          45,000,000        

Lease liabilities repaid during the year (35,411,488)       (41,832,528)       

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (11,392,027)       24,867,838        

Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 413,007,171      (32,983,403)       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,619,656,905)  (1,586,673,502)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31 (1,206,649,734)  (1,619,656,905)  

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the Year ended June 30, 2021

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Revenue 

reserve

Total 

Note

Balance as at July 1, 2019 198,528,000   636,590,009       44,580,488     775,173,992      1,654,872,489    

Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year -                  -                      -                  (102,581,502)    (102,581,502)      

Other comprehensive income for the year -                  43,859,875         -                  1,549,326          45,409,201         

-                  43,859,875         (101,032,176)    (57,172,301)        

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property

plant and equipment on account of 

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 13 -                  (45,086,163)        -                  45,086,163        -                      

- disposals - net of tax -                  (1,515,625)          -                  1,515,625          -                      

Transactions with related parties

Amortised portion of interest free loan due to 14.2 -                  -                      (19,482,503)    -                    (19,482,503)        

change in terms of loan

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan 14.2

from related parties -                  -                      (10,783,020)    10,783,020        -                      
Fair value effect of interest free loan provided

by related parties 14.2 -                  -                      19,271,104     -                    19,271,104         

Balance as at June 30, 2020 198,528,000   633,848,096       33,586,069     731,526,624      1,597,488,789    

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -                  -                      -                  159,801,097      159,801,097       

Other comprehensive income for the year -                  (7,130,328)          -                  4,673,892          (2,456,436)          

-                  (7,130,328)          -                  164,474,989      157,344,661       

Transfer to / from surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment on account of 

- revaluation surplus as at June 30, 2021 - net of tax -                  329,878,174       -                  -                    329,878,174       

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 13 -                  (45,876,184)        -                  45,876,184        -                      

- disposals - net of tax -                  -                      -                  -                    -                      

Transactions with related parties

Amortised portion of interest free loan due to
change in terms of loan 14.2 -                  -                      -                  -                    -                      

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan
from related parties 14.2 -                  -                      (9,674,126)      9,674,126          -                      

Fair value effect of interest free loan provided
by related parties 14.2 -                  -                      1,901,919       -                    1,901,919           

Balance as at June 30, 2021 198,528,000   910,719,758       25,813,862     951,551,923      2,086,613,543    

Capital 

reserve

 Share

capital 

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment - 

net of tax

 Unappropriated

profit 

----------------------------------------- Rupees ------------------------------------------------

Equity portion 

of loan from 

related parties

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.



24

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2021

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

Karachi Purpose

Head Office

Nankana Sahib Purpose

Regional Office and Production Plant / Factory

2.

2.1

-

-

2.2

2.3

2.4

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as an unquoted public limited company on June 5,
1990 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited on April 28, 1992. The registered office of the Company is situated at 6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor, Central
Commercial Area, Bahadurabad, Karachi in the Province of Sindh. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing,
processing and sale of all kinds of yarn. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of; 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with requirements of IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Company:

Statement of compliance

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except that certain categories of property,
plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts and the Company's liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) is stated
at present value of defined benefit obligation.

Use of estimates and judgements

Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & District Nankana 
Punjab

6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor, Central Commercial 
Area, Bahadurabad

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded o ff to the nearest rupee.

Presentation and functional currency

Basis of measurement



25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2021

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.5

2.5.1

-

-

-

-

-

2.5.2

-

-

-

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a business

Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial reporting, including amendments to references to the
conceptual framework in IFRS

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of material

impairment of financial assets (notes 3.5.4).

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material judgment in the next
financial year are set forth below:

assumptions and estimates used in writing down items of stock-in-trade to their net realizable value (notes 3.3 and 6);

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for taxation including deferred taxation (notes 3.11, 16 and
29);

January 01, 2022

April 01, 2021

January 01, 2021

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,

2021

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 3.2 and 5.1);

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual 
framework

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and
IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Interest rate benchmark reform

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRS standards.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the
date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended 
beyond June 30, 2021

assumptions and estimates used in determining residual values, useful lives and recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment (notes 3.1, 3.6 and 4.1);

right of use assets and lease liability (notes 3.1, 3.18, 4.1.2 and 15);

assumptions and estimates used in accounting for defined benefit plan (notes 3.10 and 17.1);

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2021, however, these
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or do not significantly impact
the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosure.

Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

Effective from accounting 

period beginning on or after:

New accounting standards and amendments that are not yet effective

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, 
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

contingencies and commitments (note 21); and
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3.

3.1

3.1.1

-

-

-

IFRS 1  'First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

IFRS 17  'Insurance Contracts'

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the SECP:

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRS Standard, which are also not expected to have
material impact on financial reporting of the Company.

Amendments to 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - Amendments regarding deferred tax on 
leases and decommissioning obligations

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

Effective from accounting 

period beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of 
accounting policies

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - 
Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before 
intended use

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in
the preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including borrowing costs, if any. When
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so
replaced is derecognised. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis at the rates specified in note 4.1.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month an asset is available for use upto the month prior to its disposal.

Building, Labour colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and mill equipment are stated at revalued amounts
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any; and

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Land is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any;

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.



3.1.2

3.2

3.3

-   Raw material (imported)

-   Raw material (local)

-   Stock-in-transit

-   Work-in-process and finished goods

Leased assets

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and consists of expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant
asset categories as and when assets are available for intended use.

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from
the estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on
revaluation of assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropriated profit). Further,
accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset
being sold is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

  
An item of property, plant and equipment is dercognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in other income
/ other expenses in the statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any related amount included in the
surplus on revaluation is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

Surplus on revaluation of assets is recognised net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and presented
as a separate component of equity as “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except that it reverses a
revaluation deficit for the same asset previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the surplus is
credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit charged previously.

Deficit on revaluation of assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except that it reverses a revaluation surplus
for the same asset previously recognised in statement of other comprehensive income, in which case the deficit is charged
to other comprehensive income to the extent of the surplus credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Plant and machinery acquired under finance lease is stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Vehicles acquired under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Assets that will be transferred at the end of the lease term are depreciated over the useful life of
the assets commencing from the year in which the leased assets are put into operation. Depreciation and other policies are
same as for the owned assets described above.

These are stated at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value, less allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items (if any). Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on the
management’s estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated costs
necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Stock-in-trade

Stores, spares and loose tools 

These are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

Cost signifies in relation to:

Lower of cost (weighted average) and NRV

Cost accumulated up to reporting date

Lower of cost (weighted average) and NRV

Lower of cost (weighted average) and net realisable value (NRV) 

- specific identification basis

-   Waste Net realisable value (NRV)
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3.4

3.5

3.5.1

At amortized cost (“AC”),

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). 

1)

2)

1)

2)

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
loss allowance, if any. The Company measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not  designated as FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI.

Classification of financial assets

Financial instruments

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

Net realizable value (NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated
costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at FVTOCI

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents annual average manufacturing cost which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Trade debts and other receivables
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3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

–

–

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

All financial assets at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income.

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, the amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in contrast to equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTOCI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.

Under expected credit loss (ECL) model of IFRS 9, the Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured
at 12-month ECLs: 

Financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

Other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of assets and liabilities when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recorded in the income statement.

Impairment

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities not classified either
as AC or FVTOCI).

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
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3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.10.1 Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefit obligation

Cash and cash equivalents

Provisions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into reporting currency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions
and translation are included in the income currently. 

Impairment of non-financial assets

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present, legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents used in statement of cash flows include cash in hand balances with banks in current and deposit
accounts and short term borrowings. Short-term borrowings availed by the Company, are payable on demand and form an
integral part of the Company’s cash management.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Derecognition

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its factory workers who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined
through actuarial valuation carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
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3.10.2

3.11

3.11.1

3.11.2

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Company manufactures and contracts with customers for the sale of yarn which generally include single performance
obligation. Management has assessed that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched to the customer.

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend income

Revenue recognition

Borrowing costs

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is recognised in the period in
which these are approved.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense
and current service cost are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all head office staff. Equal monthly
contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per annum.

Interest income is accrued on time proportionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment have been established and is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and included in other income.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax

Current tax

Taxation

Defined contribution plan

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax rebates
and tax credits available, if any, or turnover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section 113C of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. Charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where necessary,
relating to prior years which arise from assessment framed / finalized during the year. However, for income covered under
final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits in the foreseeable future
will be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Further, the Company also recognizes a deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.
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3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

Owned 4.1.1 1,964,381,190  1,556,034,590  

Right of use assets 4.1.2 75,948,660       106,662,382     

Advance against vehicle 4.1.3 5,717,100         -                   

2,046,046,950  1,662,696,972  

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses that relates to transactions with any of the other components of the Company. 

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company have been identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments.
Management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's
operations as one reportable segment.

Commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred are disclosed in the financial statements at committed
amounts. Commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in
rupee terms at committed amounts.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the assets economic life. The right-of-use
asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease  liability. 

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The Company recognises leases as a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Company.

The lease liability is subsequently measured (at amortised cost) by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability using the effective interest method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. It
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or
rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

For short term leases and leases of low / immaterial value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Earnings per share

Segment reporting

Commitments
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

5. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares 45,950,186       47,023,198       
Stores and spares in transit 4,169,707         6,868,020         
Loose tools 64,585              64,585              

50,184,478
       

53,955,803
       

Less: provision for slow moving items 5.1 (6,374,821)
        

(6,374,821)
        

43,809,657
       

47,580,982
       

5.1 Movement in provision for slow moving items

Balance as at July 1, 6,374,821
         

6,374,821
         Provision made during the year -

                    
-

                    
 Balance as at June 30, 6,374,821

         
6,374,821

         

6. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

- In hand 785,996,519

     

1,004,724,792

  - In transit 155,372,804

     

349,733,833

     Work-in-process 41,992,838

       

38,283,787

       Finished goods

- In hand 61,419,155

       

71,782,264

       
- In transit -

                    

24,606,640

       
- Third party 39,370,268

       

45,070,336

       Waste 5,968,408

         

3,856,262

         1,090,119,992

  

1,538,057,914

  
6.1

7. TRADE DEBTS 

Considered good

Export 83,606,403

       

1,631,173

         

Local 618,114,799

     

780,467,008

     

7.1 701,721,202

     

782,098,181

     

Considered doubtful

Local 12,413,215

       

12,413,215

       
714,134,417

     

794,511,396

     

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 7.2 (12,413,215)

      

(12,413,215)

      
701,721,202

     

782,098,181

     
7.1

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

7.2

Balance as at July 1, 12,413,215

       

12,413,215

       

Provision made during the year -

                    

-

                    

Balance as at June 30, 12,413,215

       

12,413,215

       

During the year there is no provision on stock-in-trade, however, during last year goods costing Rs 61.44 million were written
down by Rs 5.92 million to net realisable value amounting to Rs 55.51 million.

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms. Trade debts are unsecured other than the
export and local trade debts that are secured against letter of credits as mentioned in note 7.4.



2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

7.3

0 - 90 days 573,107,254     210,485,661     
91-180 days 87,222,961       161,008,446     
181 - 360 days 51,427,302       396,068,353     
Above 360 days 2,376,900         26,948,936       

714,134,417
     

794,511,396
     

7.4

Confirmed LC

Confirmed LC

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

8. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Considered good

Loans to employees - unsecured 8.1 632,000

            

414,000

            Advance to employees 8.1 475,481

            

2,394,481

         
Advances - unsecured 

- to suppliers 19,923,795

       

15,211,165

       
- for expenses 1,164,303

         

1,411,694

         21,088,098

       

16,622,859

       
Advance income tax 61,325,131

       

48,287,120

       83,520,710

       

67,718,460

       
8.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax 

- considered good 21,158,402

       

47,992,564

       

- considered doubtful 2,630,629

         

2,630,629

         Export rebate - considered doubtful 2,194,344

         

2,194,344

         

Duty draw back receivable 5,872,932

         

5,872,932

         
Cotton quality and weight claims 

-  considered good 3,279,126

         

8,479,386

         
Profit on deposits 2,101,232

         

2,087,871

         

Others 9.1 122,284,243

     

1,998,939

         

159,520,908

     

71,256,665

       

Less: provision for doubtful receivables 9.2 (4,824,973)

        

(4,824,973)

        

154,695,935

     

66,431,692

       

Amount in Rupees

83,606,403
                                    

Ageing of trade debts past due but not impaired

Following are the details for local and export related trade debts outstanding as at June 30 2021, which are secured against
 letter of credit:

These represents unsecured, interest free, short-term loan and advance given to employees of the Company.

Exports - China

Local sales

Mode of arrangement

12,130,560
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9.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
9.2 Provision for doubtful receivables

As at July 01, 2020          4,824,973          4,824,973 

Provision recognized during the year                       -                         -   

As at June 30, 2021          4,824,973          4,824,973 

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Term deposit receipts 10.1 97,094,620
       

73,746,320
       

10.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 1,761,291

         

987,370

            
Cash at banks

    -  in current accounts 11.1 6,578,622

         

17,305,401

           -  in savings account 11.2 30,835

              

107,534

            8,370,748

         

18,400,305

       

11.1

11.2

12. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

   Authorised

22,000,000 22,000,000 220,000,000 220,000,000

   Issued, subscribed and paid-up

19,852,800 19,852,800 198,528,000 198,528,000

     
12.1

   paid in cash

The Company has one class of ordinary share, which carry equal voting rights but no right to fixed income. Voting rights, board
selection etc. are in proportion to their shareholding.

This includes an amount of Rs. 6.68 million (2020: Rs. 6.68 million) on which the bank has created lien on account of
guarantee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 21.1.1 to the financial statements.

Number of shares

It carries markup of 6.56% (2020: 8.9%) per annum.

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully

During the year, the Company entered into an agreement with a customer whereby overdue balance as of January 1, 2021 will
be paid in instalments until December 31, 2021. This has resulted in modification in terms of financial assets and therefore, the
Company has recognized modification loss, as disclosed in note 27. As at June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is Rs.
120.58 million.

These represents term deposit receipts with various banks for a period ranging from six months to one year carrying mark-up
at the rates ranging from 6.25% to 9.00% (2020: 5.90% to 10.00%) per annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit
receipts on account of guarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 21.1.1 to the financial statements. These will
mature latest by June 09, 2022 (2020: August 21, 2021).
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
13. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

 EQUIPMENT - net of tax

As at July 1, 769,235,102     827,686,199     

Surplus arising during the year 384,049,417     -                    

Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:

- incremental depreciation - net of tax (45,876,184)      (45,086,163)      

- related deferred tax liability (12,446,071)      (11,464,146)      

- disposals - net of tax -                    (1,515,625)        

- related deferred tax liability -                    (385,163)           

(58,322,255)      (58,451,097)      

As at June 30 1,094,962,264  769,235,102     

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

Revaluation surplus as at July 1, 135,387,006     191,096,190     

Surplus arising during the year 16 54,171,243       -                    

Adjustment due to change in tax rate 16 7,130,328         (43,859,875)      

Incremental depreciation charged during the year (12,446,071)      (11,464,146)      

Assets disposed-off during the year -                    (385,163)           

16 184,242,506     135,387,006     

As at June 30 910,719,758     633,848,096     

14. LONG-TERM FINANCE

Long term portion

Financial institutions 14.1 95,173,061       83,150,898       

Related parties 14.2 73,927,139       60,154,932       

169,100,200     143,305,830     

Current portion

14.1 90,459,584       49,235,496       

14.2 14,894,598       50,121,388       

105,354,182     99,356,884       

Financial institutions

Related parties
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
14.2 Loan from related parties - unsecured

Opening as at July 01, 110,276,320   59,849,513     
Receipts during the year 14.2.1 6,000,000

       
45,000,000

     
Repayments during the year 14.2.1 (35,226,790)

    
(5,567,612)

      
Unwinding of discount 9,674,126

       
10,783,020

     
Release of equity portion of loan due to change in terms of loan -

                  
19,482,503

     
Less: Fair value adjustment (1,901,919)

      
(19,271,104)

    
88,821,737

     
110,276,320

   
Payable within one year (14,894,598)

    
(50,121,388)

    
Closing as at June 30, 73,927,139

     

60,154,932

     

14.2.1

14.2.2

Loan received Present value

   48,741,000      36,855,198 

   45,000,000      32,768,956 

     6,000,000        4,302,985 

Due Date

June 03, 2023

December 08, 2023

December 14, 2024

December 31, 2021    14,894,598      14,894,598 

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
15. LEASE LIABILITY

Present value of minimum lease payments 15.1 29,408,329

    

    

 

 

40,353,062

    

    

 

 

Less: current portion shown under current liabilities (19,268,069)

    

(24,536,352)

    

10,140,260

114,635,598

     

15,816,710

88,821,737

     
15.1

Not later than one year 21,113,822

   

     1,845,753 19,268,069

   

27,656,118

   

3,119,766

       

24,536,352

     

Later than one year but not 111

     later than five years 10,668,764

   

        528,504 10,140,260

   

17,071,771

   

1,255,061

       

15,816,710

     

31,782,586

   

2,374,257

  

29,408,329

   

44,727,889

   

4,374,827

       

40,353,062

     

            ----------------------------------------------------------Rupees ------------------------ ----------------------------------

The rates of mark-up ranges from 9.46% to 10.38% (2020: 13.66% to 16.54%) per annum and are used as discounting factor. The
lease terms are upto 3 years. The Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon completion of the lease
period. Liabilities are secured against leased assets, demand promissory notes and security deposits.

Future 

minimum 

lease 

Total future minimum lease payments

Future 
minimum 

lease 
Finance cost

Present 

value
Finance cost Present value

During the year, the Company obtained loan amounting to Rs. 6 million from the directors of the Company as per the agreement signed
on December 15, 2020. These loans are interest free, unsecured and are expected to be repaid by the end of December 14, 2024.
Using the discount rate of 10% per annum, the fair value of the loans is estimated at Rs. 4.1 million. The difference of Rs. 1.9 million is
recognized in equity in this regard. 

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under leases (and musharaka arrangement) from leasing companies and
financial institutions. Future minimum lease payments under lease together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments
are as follows:

2021 2020

During the year, the Company has repaid loan amounting to Rs. 35.23 million to directors and their closed family members.

The interest (i.e., unwinding of the difference between present value on initial recognition and the amount received) is being recognized
on the loan in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

As at June 30, 2021, the loans received from directors are due to be paid as follows, unless otherwise the terms of repayment are
further extended:
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
16. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 1, 183,503,681      243,928,956      
Reversal to profit or loss 29 5,985,904          (17,198,224)       
Charged to other comprehensive income 1,909,055          632,824             
Adjustment to the related deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus 13 54,171,243        -                     
Tax rate adjustment on surplus 13 7,130,328          (43,859,875)       

Balance as at June 30, 252,700,211
      

183,503,681
      

This comprises of the following:

Taxable temporary differences:

- accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment 142,440,082
      

127,789,807
      - surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 184,242,507

      
135,387,006

      
326,682,589

      
263,176,813

      Deductible temporary differences:

- provision for doubtful trade debts 3,599,832
          

3,599,832
          - provision for stores and spares 1,360,398

          
1,292,334

          - carried forward depreciation loss 8,423,415

          

-

                     - provision for doubtful other receivables 1,399,242

          

1,399,242

          - provision for staff gratuity 12,323,664

        

9,886,630

          - minimum tax 46,875,827

        

63,495,094

               (73,982,378)        (79,673,132)

252,700,211

      

183,503,681

      17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Mill 17.2 54,680,081

        

48,516,371

        
Head office 17.10              252,372 252,372

             54,932,453

        

48,768,743

        
17.1

2021 2020
The principal assumptions used are as follows:

-  Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%

-  Expected rate of salary increase 9.00% 7.50%

-  Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
17.2 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 17.3 54,680,081 48,516,369

 

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumptions was used for valuation of the scheme. The basis
of recognition together with details as per actuarial valuation conducted as at June 30, 2021 are as under:

Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

 set back one 

year 

 set back one 
year 



2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
17.3

Balance as at July 1, 48,516,369        38,794,769        
Expense recognized in profit or loss 17.4 17,985,959        17,531,250        
Total remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 17.5 (6,582,947)         (2,182,150)         
Benefits paid (2,818,600)         (1,146,600)         
Benefits due but not yet paid 18.4 (2,420,700)

         
(4,480,900)

         

54,680,081
        

48,516,369
        

17.4 Expense recognized in profit or loss

Current service cost 14,084,738
        

12,403,955
        Interest cost 3,901,221

          
5,127,295

          
17,985,959

        
17,531,250

        
17.5 Total remeasurements recognized in 

   other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability arising on

- financial assumptions 260,637

             

(892,122)

            - experience adjustments (6,843,584)

         

(1,290,028)

         
(6,582,947)

         

(2,182,150)

         17.6

Current year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (2,948,800)

         

          3,363,396 

Salary growth rate 1% 3,512,500

          

         (3,139,415)

Prior year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (2,681,956)

         

          3,067,112 

Salary growth rate 1% 3,202,996

          

         (2,856,027)

17.7

17.8

Change in 
assumption

Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.

The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Sensitivity analysis

Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk
arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 
benefit obligation due to 

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 

benefit obligation due to 

Change in 

assumption

Increase in 

assumption

Decrease in 

assumption

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Movement in Retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 

    during the year

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the defined benefit
obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021 is 6 years (2020: 6 years).
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17.9

17.10

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 18.1 38,209,984        77,391,657        
Accrued liabilities 58,053,169        63,415,125        
Bills payable -                     134,654,334      
Contract liabilities 21,098,368        24,435,947        
Workers' profit participation fund 18.2 12,275,733        4,316,249          
Workers' welfare fund 18,611,659        14,182,206        
Infrastructure cess 18.3 73,680,135        

59,795,206        
Payable to provident fund 394,387

             
351,014

             
Gratuity due but not yet paid 18.4 2,816,200

          
6,666,400

          
Withholding tax payable 11,251,271

        
12,139,760

        

236,390,906
      

397,347,898
      

18.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-days term.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

18.2 Workers' profit participation fund 

Balance as at July 1, 4,316,249
          

3,716,099
          Allocation during the year 27 12,275,733

        
-

                     Interest on funds utilized in Company's business 26 70,413
               

600,150
             

16,662,395
        

4,316,249
          Paid during the year (4,386,662)

         
-

                     
Balance as at June 30, 12,275,733

        
4,316,249

          

18.3

During the year, on April 06, 2021, the High Court of Sindh vide order C.P.No D-3309 / 2011, summoned to encash all the
bank guarantees furnished by the petitioners. The SHC issued this order reasoning that the entire cargo being imported in the
Country routs through the Province of Sindh, and for that the Provincial Legislature thought it appropriate to impose a certain
amount of tax in the form of a cess. It is though being collected from an importer of goods; but in essence it is not on imports;
but for maintenance and development of infrastructure on imported goods. However, subsequent to year end, the Supreme
Court of Pakistan vide its order dated September 01, 2021, suspended the order issued by SHC stating that it suffers from
constitutional and legal defects and granted the interim relief to the Company and other petitioners. The order issued by the
Supreme Court of Pakistan states that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted pursuant to the earlier
order of SHC and shall furnish the fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the Sindh Government
against release of all future consignments of imported goods.

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which has been freezed since 2002, as per the
Company policy.

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an infrastructure fee for the
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods entering or leaving the Province through air or sea at prescribed
rates. The levy was challenged by the Company along with other companies in the High Court of Sindh through civil suits
which were dismissed by the single judge of the High Court of Sindh through its decision in October 2003. On appeal filed
there against, the High Court of Sindh has held through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as imposed through
the Sindh Finance Act, 1994 (amended time to time) was not valid till December 28, 2006, however, thereafter on account of
an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become valid and is payable by the Appellants.
The Company, along with other companies, filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the aforementioned
order of the High Court of Sindh. The Supreme Court granted stay by passing an interim order on January 22, 2009. The order
passed by the High Court of Sindh was set aside by the Supreme Court vide its order dated May 20, 2011. Consequently, a
new petition has been filed in the High Court of Sindh. Through the interim order passed on May 31, 2011, the High Court has
ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of infrastructure fee should be paid in
cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted until the final order is passed. Refer notes 10 &
21.1.1.

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 748 (2020: 687).
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

Balance as at July 1, 59,795,206        50,107,522        
Charge for the year 27,802,430        19,760,848        

87,597,636        69,868,370        
Payments made during the year (13,917,501)       (10,073,164)       

Balance as at June 30, 73,680,135        59,795,206        

18.4 Movement in gratuity due but not yet paid

Balance as at July 1, 6,666,400
          

5,597,770
          

Add: transfer from RBO during the year 17.3 2,420,700
          

4,480,900
          

Less: payments made during the year (6,270,900)
         

(3,412,270)
         

2,816,200
          

6,666,400
          

19. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term finance 437,795
             

1,015,920
          

Short-term borrowings 21,138,017
        

66,992,456
        

21,575,812
        

68,008,376
        

20. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Banking companies - secured

Running finance 428,815,076
      

518,062,837
      Cash finance 221,806,459

      
291,345,726

      Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) 564,398,947
      

828,648,647
      

20.1 1,215,020,482
   

1,638,057,210

20.1

21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1

2021 2020

21.1.1 Rupees Rupees

-   Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited 15,310,568

        

15,310,568

        -   Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 77,576,000

        

24,314,000

        -   Excise and Taxation Office 68,258,600

        

54,258,500

        
21.1.2

Letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Company to:

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 notified the sale price for sale of
natural gas at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU for captive power consumption (CPP) with immediate effect. Subsequent to the said S.R.O.,
the Company received gas bills at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU, being considered as CPP by the utility company. The Company,
considering itself as industrial consumer paid gas charges at the rate applicable before August 2013 on the basis of the stay
order obtained from the Court.

The Management is confident for a favorable outcome. However, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made provision
as follows:

Facilities for running finance, cash finance, FIM and Murabaha are available from various banks up to Rs. 3,070 million (2020:
Rs. 3,300 million). These facilities are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% (2019: 3 month KIBOR plus 1%
to 2.5%) per annum payable quarterly. These are secured against various assets including first pari passu hypothecation
charge over present and future stock-in-trade, pledge of cotton, first hypothecation charge over present and future book debts,
ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the Company, equitable mortgage on various properties and personal
guarantees of all directors of the Company.

Contingencies

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facilities amounted to Rs. 1,858 million (2020: Rs. 1,666 million).

46

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2021



47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2021

21.1.3

21.1.4

Subsequent to the year end, the Company filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh on the ground that no
burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers / clients and thus the Company is not liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act
2015. The Court granted stay order against recovery of GIDC payable by the Company till the finalization of matter by Sindh
High Court. The matter is currently pending in the Sindh High Court. 

During the year, an order dated November 11, 2020 was passed against the Company by Collector of Customs, Karachi
creating a demand of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.5 million. The Company has challenged the above order
by way of filing an appeal before the Customs Appellate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However, a
stay order was successfully obtained from Honourable Sindh High Court on December 22, 2020 by filing Constitutional Petition
number 6618 / 2020, which is still operative.

On August 12, 2020, the SCP issued its verdict (Judgement) and held that “the levy imposed under Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance with the Provisions of the Constitution”. The Supreme Court has also
held that “the Provisions of section 8 of the Act, which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC levied from
the year 2011 are also declared to be valid being within the legislative competence of the Parliament.” However, since the
Company is an industrial concern and it did not pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 (or
even thereafter), management believes that the Company is entitled to the exemption under the first proviso to Section 8(2) of
the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC levied under the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. As such, arrears
due from the Company may only include amounts levied under the GIDC Act, 2015 from the date of its commencement, i.e.,
May 22, 2015. 

Subsequent to the Order passed by the Honorable SCP on August 12, 2020, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL)
submitted bills to the industry including the Company claiming arrears of first instalment in deference to the said Judgement of
the SCP. As the bills of arrears were calculated for monthly instalment on the basis of entire total payable amount from 2011 to
July 2020 by charging Cess on the higher rate of tariff applicable to Captive Connections apart from the fact that the
implication of Section 8 of the said Act, 2015 was not taken into consideration whereby it was provided that the industry, which
has not collected the Cess from the Customers prior to 2015 shall not be liable to the payment of GIDC for the said period
from 2011 to 2015. During the year, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textile Mills Association
(APTMA) (where the Company is also a party to the petition) before Honorable High Court at Lahore against imposition of
GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of Cess from December 2011 to May 2015. Further, during the year, SNGPL started billing
for GIDC to the Company against which payment was made by the Company till March 2021 based on the order issued by
Honorable Lahore High Court against the aforementioned writ petition. Pursuant to the order, Lahore High Court restrained
SNGPL from charging the Cess at the higher tariff rate of Captive Connection and directed to issue revised bill calculated at
the rate applicable to industrial connection. Besides, the payment for the period from 2011 to 2015 was also suspended in view
of the implication of the said provision of law. Further, the Company made payment which is applicable to industrial consumers
and for the difference between the amount charged to industrial consumers and captive power consumers, post-dated
cheques are being issued by the Company in favour of SNGPL. For the amount relating to the payment of GIDC based on the
actual calculation prior to 2015, the decision was made by the Lahore High Court on June 27, 2021 whereby it has restrained
the SNGPL to collect the cess prior to 2015. 

During the year, the OGRA issued a decision on July 6, 2020, whereby, the Company (the petitioner) was directed to pay the
outstanding amount to the utility company within 30 day period from the date of decision. In response to the above decision, a
writ petition was filed before the honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) by the Company and the LHC issued a stay order on
October 8, 2020, which suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending before LHC.

From December 2015, the gas company has started supplying imported Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) resulting in the change
in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the Company.

Subsequently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide its S.R.O. # 876(I)/2015 notified the price for sale of natural gas at Rs.
600/MMBTU for industrial consumers and on captive power consumption, with effect from September 1, 2015. Aggrieved by
the notification, the Company filed a suit in the Lahore High Court contending that the mandatory procedures as laid down in
the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were not fulfilled while issuing the notification. Hence, the Company
paid / accrued gas charges at rates applicable before the above S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 on the basis of stay orders obtained
from Lahore high Court, Multan bench, from time to time, until November 2015.

The Federal Government issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Acts in the years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All
GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debate and consideration at honorable High Courts of the Country as well as the
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).



21.2 Commitments 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Letters of credit opened and outstanding for import of:

-   plant and machinery 599,912,977      -                     
-   stores and spares 8,858,225          

-                     
-   raw material 621,274,797

      
56,112,000

        

1,230,045,999
   

56,112,000
        

Local bills discounted 45,115,491
        

-
                     

22. SALES - NET

Yarn

- Local 3,473,947,661

   

2,476,880,982

   - Export 678,241,033

      

733,348,320

      4,152,188,694

   

3,210,229,302

   Raw material - Local 187,943,151

      

311,272,116

      Waste - Local 257,032,969

      

145,020,486

      4,597,164,814

   

3,666,521,904

   Less:

 Sales tax (572,554,641)

     

(415,799,852)

     
 Brokerage and commission (20,805,753)

       

(9,465,189)

         
 Discount (1,321,689)

         

(2,000,627)

         4,002,482,731

   

3,239,256,236

   23. COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 23.1 2,524,452,996

   

2,024,958,455

   Salaries, wages and benefits 23.2 178,805,427

      

159,119,774

      

Fuel and power 371,397,711

      

327,005,845

      

Depreciation 4.2 81,647,853

        

79,019,505

        

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 57,453,154

        

40,033,646

        

Packing material 56,725,436

        

39,855,445

        

Insurance 9,297,989

          

9,570,172

          

Repairs and maintenance 3,643,256

          

2,961,799

          

Vehicles running and maintenance 1,437,111

          

1,495,856

          

Other manufacturing overheads 4,298,757

          

5,366,567

          

764,706,694

      

664,428,609

      

3,289,159,690

   

2,689,387,064

   

Work-in-process

  Opening stock 38,283,787

        

26,053,631

        

  Closing stock (41,992,838)

       

(38,283,787)

       

(3,709,051)

         

(12,230,156)

       

Cost of goods manufactured 3,285,450,639

   

2,677,156,908

   

Finished goods

  Opening stock 145,315,502

      

112,069,188

      

  Yarn purchased -

                     

1,720,500

          

  Closing stock (106,757,831)

     

(145,315,502)

     

38,557,671

        

(31,525,814)

       

Cost of raw material sold 144,645,643 310,785,352

3,468,653,953 2,956,416,446
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

23.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 1,004,724,792   885,317,158      
Purchases - net  2,305,724,723   2,144,366,089   

3,310,449,515   3,029,683,247   

Closing stock (785,996,519)
     

(1,004,724,792)
  

2,524,452,996
   

2,024,958,455
   

23.2

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

24. DISTRIBUTION COST 

Freight and octroi 17,617,251

        

10,863,828

        Commission and other charges 2,538,944

          

2,783,778

          Clearing and forwarding 4,996,039

          

5,386,621

          Business promotion expenses 8,608,563

          

5,733,499

          Export development surcharge 1,459,192

          

1,835,862

          35,219,989

        

26,603,588

        
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 25.1 44,658,142

        

45,306,675

        
Fees, subscription and periodicals 3,220,224

          

2,209,773

          
Entertainment 792,305

             

1,102,462

          
Traveling and conveyance 220,628

             

1,960,747

          
Postage and telephone 1,297,724

          

1,317,201

          
Electricity, gas and water 3,371,080

          

2,644,363

          
Vehicles running and maintenance 5,699,754

          

4,609,606

          
Depreciation 4.2 10,223,738

        

10,326,842

        
Legal and professional 700,000

             

360,264

             
Auditors' remuneration 25.2 1,073,000

          

1,070,000

          
Printing and stationery 528,251

             

406,465

             

Computer 173,450

             

155,800

             

Rest house 426,426

             

1,382,101

          

Advertisement 102,200

             

160,200

             

Donation 25.3 3,686,878

          

3,870,000

          

Others 889,833

             

6,405,167

          
77,063,633

        

83,287,666

        25.1

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

25.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit Services

Annual audit fee 800,000

             

800,000

             

Half year review fee 130,000

             

130,000

             

Review of code of corporate governance 50,000

               

50,000

               

Other services 50,000

               

50,000

               

Out of pocket expenses 43,000

               

40,000

               

1,073,000

          

1,070,000

          

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 1.50 million (2020: Rs. 1.36 million) in respect of charge for employer's contribution to
provident fund.

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 17.99 million (2020: Rs. 17.53 million) in respect of charge for retirement benefit
obligations.
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25.3

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
26. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance 6,238,778
          

13,847,168
        

Mark-up on short-term borrowings 143,804,477
      

200,906,815
      Interest on lease liability 5,861,753

          
5,773,658

          Unwinding of discount on long-term finance from related parties 14.2 9,674,126
          

10,783,020
        Workers' profit participation fund 18.2 70,413

               
600,150

             Bank charges, guarantee commission and other related charges 5,787,333

          

8,695,827

          171,436,880

      

240,606,638

      
27. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 18.2 12,275,733

        

-

                     
Workers' welfare fund 4,429,453

          

-

                     
Infrastructure cess 18.3 13,884,929

        

9,687,684

          
Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 9.1 20,816,370

        

-

                     
Exchange loss - net 1,232,230

          

10,771,889

        
Realised / unrealized loss on other financial assets -

                     

170,748

             
Other -

                     

954,757

             
52,638,715

        

21,585,078

        28. OTHER INCOME

Profit on deposits 3,448,187

          

5,291,174

          

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,555,071

          

5,130,486

          

Scrap sales 970,796

             

-

                     

Unwinding of discount on other receivables 9.1 14,415,117

        

-

                     

25,389,171

        

10,421,660

        

29. TAXATION

Current

- for the year 56,722,427

        

43,168,418

        

- prior year 349,304

             

(2,210,212)

         

57,071,731

        

40,958,206

        

Deferred 16 5,985,904

          

(17,198,224)

       

63,057,635

        

23,759,982

        

29.1

222,858,732

      

(78,821,520)

       

29% 29%

64,629,032

        

(22,858,241)

       

Prior year tax adjustments 349,304

             

(2,210,212)

         

Permanent differences (525,063)

            

1,122,300

          

Impact of FTR income (3,300,234)

         

12,138,721

        

Impact of tax credit on donations -

                     

Adjustment of effective rate 9,695,239

          

31,538,265

        

Impact of unrecognized tax losses including depreciation loss -

                     

11,919,753

        

Previously unrecognized tax depreciation loss recognized in current year (8,423,415)

         

-

                     

Others 632,772

             

(7,890,604)

         

Profit before taxation

Tax rate %

Tax on accounting profit

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees' fund. During the year, the Company has donated Rs. 1.14 million to
The Citizens Foundation.
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29.2

30.  LOSS / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2021 2020

Profit / (Loss) for the year Rupees 159,801,097
       

(102,581,502)
     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
    outstanding during the year 19,852,800

         
19,852,800

        

Earnings / (Loss) per share Rupees / Share 8.05
                    

(5.17)
                  

2021 2020
31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Rupees Rupees

Cash and bank balances 11 8,370,748

           

18,400,305

        Short-term borrowings 20 (1,215,020,482)

  

(1,638,057,210)

  (1,206,649,734)

  

(1,619,656,905)

  
32.

2021 2020

Nature of transaction Note Rupees Rupees

Remuneration paid 13,677,658

         

12,391,627

        
Post employment benefits 248,100

              

242,464

             Post employment contribution planContribution to employees' provident fund
25.1 1,501,682

           

1,362,781

          33. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 Executive 
 Non-

executive 
Executive

Non-
executive

Remuneration 2,400,000

    

2,000,000

    

-

               

4,738,440

    

2,000,000

    

1,600,000

    

-

                        

4,413,344

             

House rent allowance 720,000

      

      

 

 

600,000

      

      

 

 

-

              

              

 

 

1,451,530

   

   

 

 

600,000

      

      

 

  

480,000

      

      

 

 

-

                       

                       

 

 

1,695,615

            

            

 

 

Utilities 240,000 200,000 - 443,844 200,000 160,000 - 441,334

Medical

Meeting Fee

240,000

- - -

200,000 - 443,844

55,000

55,000

200,000 160,000 -

--- -

441,334

2021 2020

 Chief 

Executive  

Directors

Executives
 Chief 

Executive  

Directors

Executives

  Rupees ------   ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Subsequent to the amendment of section 5(A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001, tax at the applicable rate shall be imposed on every public
company which derives profit for the year. However, this tax shall not apply in case of a company which distributes at least specified
percentage of after tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year in the form of cash dividend. In 2019, the Company had obtained
stay order from Sindh High Court (SHC) in respect of application of such clause. During the year, SHC has passed an order and set aside
show cause / demand notices seeking enforcement of section 5(A).

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss / earnings per share of the Company which is based on:

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel and post employment contribution plan.
Shareholding of related parties, long-term loans obtained from directors and associated undertakings (and unwinding of discount thereon) and
remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives are disclosed in note 32.1, note 26 and note 33 respectively. Other
significant transaction with a related party is as follows:

Key Management Personnel

Relationship with the 

Company

                                                                                          

                                                                                          

3,600,000

    

3,000,000

                   

7,077,658

    

3,000,000

    

2,400,000

    

-

                        

6,991,627

             

Number of persons 1

                  

1 5

                  

3

                  

1

                  

1

                  

4

                           

3

                           

2021 2020
34. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Installed production capacity 20/s count - yarn in kgs. 14,795,745

         

14,795,745

        

Actual production during the year at 20/s count - yarn in Kgs. 9,926,877

           

10,073,547

        

It is difficult to precisely describe the production capacity and compare it with actual production in the textile industry since it fluctuates widely
depending upon various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speeds, twists per inch, raw material used, etc.

The Chief Executive, directors and some executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars.
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35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2021 2020

Total number of employees of the Company as at reporting date 787 728

Average number of employees of the Company during the year 769 709

Employee's working in Company's factory as at reporting date 748 687

Average number of employees working in Company's factory during the year 731 668

36. PROVIDENT FUND 

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per statement of financial position 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

At amortised cost

Security deposits 2,887,987         2,766,242         

Trade debts 701,721,202     782,098,181     

Loans and advances 1,107,481         2,808,481         

Other receivables 127,664,601     12,566,196       

Other financial assets 97,094,620       73,746,320       

Cash and bank balances 8,370,748         18,400,305       

938,846,638     892,385,725     

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortized cost

Long-term finance

- from banking companies 185,632,645     132,386,394     

- from related parties 88,821,737       110,276,320     

Lease liability 29,408,329       40,353,062       

Trade and other payables 99,473,740       282,478,530     

Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885         2,424,885         

Mark-up accrued 21,575,812       68,008,376       

Short-term borrowings 1,215,020,482  1,638,057,210  

1,642,357,630  2,273,984,777  

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

-  Credit risk

-  Liquidity risk

-  Market risk

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively are as follows:

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's financial risk
management. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's financial risk exposures. The Company has exposure to the following
risks from its use of financial instruments:

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
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38.1

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 2,887,987
         

2,766,242
         Trade debts 38.1.1 701,721,202

     
782,098,181

     Loans and advances 38.1.2 1,107,481
         

2,808,481
         Other receivables 127,664,601

     
12,566,196

       Other financial assets 38.1.3 97,094,620
       

73,746,320
       Bank balances 38.1.3 6,609,457

         
17,412,935

       
937,085,347

     

891,398,355

     38.1.1

38.1.2

38.1.3

Bank Name Rating Agency Short term Long term

PACRA A1+ AA+

VIS A1+ AA

VIS A1+ AA

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1 A

PACRA A1+ AAA

VIS A2 A-

PACRA A1 A+

VIS A1 A+

VIS A1+ AA+

PACRA A1+ AA-

VIS A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AA-

Habib Bank Limited 30-Jun-21

Bank Al-Habib Limited 26-Jun-21

Soneri Bank Limited 25-Jun-21

Sindh Bank Limited 30-Jun-21

Meezan Bank Limited 30-Jun-21

J.S Bank Limited 30-Jun-21

National Bank of Pakistan 25-Jun-21

Silk bank Limited 30-Jun-21

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 30-Jun-21

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 25-Jun-21

The Bank of Punjab 30-Jun-21

MCB Islamic Bank Limited 25-Jun-21

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a
number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in
similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

Credit risk

Trade debts

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, other financial assets, other
receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

30-Jun-21

Date of Rating

Bank Al-Falah Limited 26-Jun-21

Samba Bank Limited 30-Jun-21

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

The trade debts at year end are primarily due from local customers against local sales. Management assesses the credit
quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company
has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment
that represents lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery pattern and adjustment of trade debts
secured against letter of credits.

Loans and advances

These include loans and advances given primarily to employees against salaries, which will be adjusted against their future
salaries or in case of resignation against their post retirement benefit balances.

Other financial assets and balances with banks

The Company deposits its funds and invests in term deposit receipts (other financial assets) with banks carrying good credit
standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks are credit rated as follows:
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38.2

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

maturities 

 Maturity upto 

one year 

 Maturity after 

one year 

------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------

Long-term finance

  - from related parties 88,821,737       118,113,823     14,894,598       103,219,225     

  - from banking company 185,632,645     195,592,540     96,071,779       99,520,761       

Lease liability 29,408,329       31,782,586       21,113,822       10,668,764       

Trade and other payables 99,473,740       99,473,740       99,473,740       -                    

Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885         2,424,885         2,424,885         -                    

Markup accrued 21,575,812       21,575,812       21,575,812       -                    

Short-term borrowings 1,215,020,482  1,215,020,482  1,215,020,482  -                    

1,642,357,630  1,683,983,868  1,470,575,118  213,408,750     

 Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual 
maturities 

 Maturity upto 
one year 

 Maturity after 
one year 

------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------

Long-term financing

  - from related parties 110,276,320     143,862,388     50,121,388       93,741,000       

  - from banking company 132,386,394     147,526,171     50,923,485       96,602,686       

Lease liability 40,353,062       44,727,889       27,656,118       17,071,771       

Trade and other payables 282,478,530     282,478,530     282,478,530     -                    

Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885         2,424,885         2,424,885         -                    

Markup accrued 68,008,376       68,008,376       68,008,376       -                    

Short-term borrowings 1,638,057,210  1,638,057,210  1,638,057,210  -                    

2,273,984,777  2,327,085,449  2,119,669,992  207,415,457     

38.3

38.3.1

2021

2020

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could
be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and
availability of financing through banking arrangements. 

Liquidity risk

Interest rate risk

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as share price, foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is primarily exposed to interest rate
risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, other financial
assets and bank balances in saving account.
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2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost        97,094,620        73,746,320 

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost      152,558,140        52,500,000 

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost 30,835              107,534            

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost 1,277,503,316  
1,829,599,723  

38.3.2

June 30, 2021
USD EURO Total

------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

83,606,403

       
-

                    
83,606,403

       

June 30, 2020

1,631,173

         

-

                    

1,631,173

         128,276,328

     

(6,378,016)

         

134,654,344

     (126,645,155)

    

(6,378,016)

        

(133,023,171)

    

Average rate Reporting date rate
2021 2020 2021 2020

USD 158.05 168.75 157.80 / 158.30 167.60 / 168.10
Euro 188.42 188.46 188.12 / 188.71 188.19 / 188.72

38.4

Trade debts

Net exposure

At June 30, 2021, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 4.18 million (2020: Rs. 6.65
million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar and Euro - denominated trade debts
and trade payables.

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------

Capital risk management

Bills payable

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its businesses.

A change of 50 basis points in KIBOR based financial liabilities at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
equity and profit before tax by Rs. 6.39 million (2020: Rs. 9.15 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

Trade debts

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings and 
bank balances in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore,
a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

At the reporting date the interest rate risk profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount

Currency risk
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42. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 04, 2021  by the Board of Direct ors of the Company.
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NUMBER OF SHARE HOLDERS S H A R E    H O L D I N G S

2,448

87,341

359,945

302,312

78,850

115,525

52,250

109,940

55,743

64,900

58,351

71,500

94,000

110,000

123,000

130,350

181,500

211,400

331,553

514,007

672,870

756,000

901,593

1,928,465

4,969,362

7,569,595

19,852,800

58

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on June 30, 2021



59

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
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Categories of Shareholders PercentageNo. of
Shareholders

Shares
held

Associated Companies, Undertaking

and Related Paraties

02 19,150

          

0.096

            

Directors, CFO & their Spouse and

Minor Children 08

Mr. S. M. Idrees Allawala 550

                 

0.003

            

Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 7,569,595

     

38.129

          

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 2,475,572

     

12.470

          

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 4,969,362

     

25.031

          

Mr. Muhammad Israil 2,200

             

0.011

            

Syed Masud Arif 500

                 

0.003

            

Miss. Azra Yaqub Vawda 500

                 

0.003

            

Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor W/o S. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039

     

7.264

            

Executive - - -

Joint Stock Companies 07 2,531

             

0.013

            

.

NIT & ICP - - -

Others 01 550

                 

0.003

            

Banks, Development Finance Institutions,

Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance

Companies, Modarabas & Mutual Funds 04 186,340

         

0.939

            

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest

Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 7,569,595

     

38.129

          

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 2,475,572

     

12.470

          

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 4,969,362

     

25.031

          

Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor w/o S. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039

     

7.264

            

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

Associated Companies, Undertaking, and Related Parties 2 19,150

           

0.096

             

Directors, CFO & their Spouse & Minor Children 8 16,460,318

    

82.912

           

Joint Stock Companies 7 2,531 0.013

Bank, Development Finance Institutions 5 186,340 0.939

Insurance Companies, Modarabas

Others 1 550 0.003

Individuals 1,401 3,183,911 16.038

1423 19,852,800 100.000
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FORM OF PROXY 

The Secretary 

IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

Ismail Centre, 1st Floor, 

6-C, Central Commercial Area,

Bahadurabad, Karachi - 74800

I/We

of 

being a member of Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. hereby appoint

of 

or failing

of 

As witness my hand this of 2021

Signed by the said in the presence of 

1. Witness: 

Signature

Name:

Address

2. Witness: 

Signature

Name:

Address

 

Shareholder’s Folio No.

CDC Participants I.D./Sub A/C #

CNIC No.

(Important: This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/-revenue 

stamp, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48

hours before the time for holding the meeting).

As my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf

at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Thursday October 04, 2021 and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signature on 

Five Rupees

Revenue Stamp

Signature of Member 
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